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CORPORATE PROFILE

MANDATE

The Engineers Registration Board (ERB) is a statutory 
body established by an Act of Parliament, namely 
the Engineers Registration Act CAP 61:06 of 1998 as 
amended in 2009 and provisions of Act 23 of 2014. 

The mandate of ERB as spelt out under Section 3(1) 
of the Act provides in part that the Board shall have 
responsibility for regulating the activities and conduct 
of engineers in accordance with the functions and 
powers conferred upon it by the Act.

Objectives
Promote the highest standards of engineering 
practice in Botswana; and
Protect the welfare and interest of the public in 
the engineering practice.

Assess applications made to it through the Act;
Register professional engineers and issue practicing 
certificates;
Monitor standards of engineering practice and 
ethics;
Conduct or authorize enquiries regarding any 
alleged professional misconduct of any engineer; 
and
Prescribe the eligibility requirements for persons 
applying to be registered under this Act to practice 
professional engineering.

Functions



VISION

Ethical engineering practice

VALUES

Integrity
Exellence
Innovation

Value Creation
Transparency

MISSION

To protect the welfare
and interest of the public 

by regulating the activities 
and conduct of the engineers,
engineering technologists and 

engineering technicians, as
well as promoting the highest 

standards of engineering
practice

Integrity

We do what we have
commited to do

We take responsibility for our 
decisions and actions

Our behavior is consistent
with our expressed values,

principles and ethics

Innovation

We critique the current
way we do things

We support new
approaches, methods,

or technologies

Value Creation

We share information,
knowledge and ideas that

may assist in the enhancement
of engineering practice

We embrace new ideas
 and approaches

Exellence

We strive for exellence in
our actions

Transparency

Conduct our business in a 
transparent way
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FOREWORD BY BOARD CHAIRPERSON

I have the pleasure to present to you this review report 
for the 2017/18 reporting period. It was pleasing to 
note that the registration of engineers continued to 
bear fruit with an upward trajectory maintained. 1321 
in total registered, which was 6.4% improvement 
compared to the previous year.  One can rest assured 
that the Secretariat has amassed good experience in 
registration, but what remains would be to perfect it 
to reduce the turnaround times. The total number of 
engineers registered was above target by 6.3% (76.3% 
vs 70%), which indicates a steady growth compared 
to 7% above target achieved in the previous reporting 
period.

The Board intends to put more effort in other functions 
such as marketing, monitoring and further standards 
development. To that end, the Secretariat would 
receive budget support to start implementing the 
approved communications strategy. Resourcing of the 
Monitoring department, which would be concentrating 
on compliance with the Act was initiated with the view 
to have it up and running in the first quarter of the 
coming financial year. This department would help the 
Board in monitoring standards of engineering practice 
and ethics; and conducting or authorizing inquiries 
regarding any alleged professional misconduct of any 
registered engineer. As far as standards development 
is concerned, it would be very critical to have a critical 
mass of policies and rules that give effect to both the 
Act and any overarching policies and further standards 
such as the Initial Professional Development (IPD) 
and the Discipline Specific guidlines were identified 
as requiring development. Those would be delivered 
upon in the coming year.  

I cannot overemphasise the requirement for the Board 
to be visible out there and I am happy to note that 

the Secretariat pursued their strategy of facilitating 
various workshops ranging from Report Writing, CPD, 
etc. which always resulted in more applications being 
received and a higher application success rate upon 
assessment by Professional Assessment Committees.

The cost of running the institution continued to grow; 
operating expenditure, yet it was lower than the income 
was up by 17%; owing to increased salaries and 
wages, office rental and depreciation & amortisation, 
advertising & promotions and auditor’s remuneration, 
only to mention a few. 

However, Government gave subvention support 
amounting to P6,779, 520 and coupled to the revenue 
generated from operations, the Board had an operating 
surplus at the end of the review period.

Thus, the financial position of the Board had a positive 
outlook; cash generated from operating activities grew 
by P0.7 million and the year-end cash and cash 
equivalent as well as asset base each realised a real 
growth of approximately P3.5 million

Following the approval of the Continuing Professional 
Development (CPD) policy in June 2017, the Board 
managed to successfully implement the policy requirements 
in January 2018, when engineers renewing Practicing 
Certificates were able to produce minimum CPD 
credits earned in order renew. 

I would like to thank my colleagues on the Board for 
their support, guidance and continued feedback. Simon Mmopi

BSc (Civil Engineering)
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REGISTRAR’S REPORT

It gives me great humility to be presenting to you the 
Engineers Registration Board’s annual report for the 
2017/18 financial year. Following from the previous year, 
2017/18 was characterised by a steady, but improved 
performance against our strategic objectives. The Board 
continued to make strides in pursuit of its strategic 
themes for the planning period.

Registration of Engineers
An original target of 60% was changed during the 
financial year to 70%, in terms of the total engineers 
to be registered with the Board against an estimated 
population of 5500 that was determined in 2015. 
Against the new target, the Board registered 4196 
(76.3%) against a target of 3850. The total number 
of engineers registered during the year was 1321 vs 
1242 registered in the previous year, that is, a 6.4 % 
real growth in registration numbers.

Going forward, the Board is to leverage on technology 
to make registration experience a worthwhile one. In 
this regard, activities like online registration, automatic 
renewals and real-time registration reporting shall be 
introduced. The number of customers (walk-in, enquiries, 
etc.) increased during the year under review and 
this prompted the Secretariat to look into making the 
whole registration process more efficient by enhancing 
support for registration and ensuring non-receipt 
of incomplete applications, shortening the desktop 
assessment of applications, only to mention but a few.

The Board was also alive to various challenges leading 
to low registration and it undertook rigorous public 
education to demystify some of the misconceptions 

and in the process also simplify registration 
requirements. Collection of customer feedback on the 
range of services provided by the Secretariat was very 
instrumental in enhancing the quality of the services.

Reduce Malpractice and Negligence
The Board is mandated to enforce the Engineers 
registration Act, 2009 CAP 61:06 and must do so 
by giving effect to this law through the Engineers 
Registration Regulations; the Code of Professional 
Conduct and Ethics; and any other rules and 
regulations governing engineers in Botswana. To that 
end to ensure compliance, the ERB recognises the 
vital role that must be played by various stakeholders 
(e.g. Government, engineering companies, practicing 
engineers, engineering bodies, public, etc.), who 
must be well informed, engaged and coordinated to 
ultimately achieve the ambitions of the Act.  

With respect to the effective monitoring of engineering 
practices in the country to decrease malpractice and 
negligence in Botswana, the Board had on record 23 
fraud and malpractice cases reported with the police 
and those were at various stages of investigations and/
or prosecution. During the reporting period 1 case of fraud 
for an individual was sentenced by the Magistrate 
Courts.

In its effort to strengthen capacity in monitoring, the 
Board ensued in a process of recruiting for the position 
of a Monitoring Manager in the last quarter of the year 
with a plan to have the manager start work in the first 
quarter of the 2018/19 financial year. The intention 
of this capacitation is to give more focus to the 

Dennis A. Olaotse
MBA (Business Administration)
BEng EE (Electrical & Electronics)
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REGISTRAR’S REPORT (cont.)

monitoring function and be able to determine the level 
of compliance, in terms of registration, compliance to 
standards and upholding of professionalism, only to 
mention a few. 

Financial Sustenance
Financial sustenance is key for the going concern of the 
ERB and during the period under review, I am happy to 
report that collection from alternative revenue sources 
improved. A total income of P14,544,437 was realised, 
including government subvention of P6,779,520 thus 
yielding revenue contribution of 53.4%.  

Total expenditure continued to grow compared to the 
previous year (P11,449,460.00 vs P9,777,392 last 
year), but because of the best financial management 
practices adopted by the Board the expenditure was 
maintained within the budget. The resulting operating 
surplus for the 2017/18 was P3,238,208 compared to 
P2,820,898 recorded in the previous period.

I would like to take this time to thank all our esteemed 
stakeholders for their continued feedback, staff for 
their dedication to the cause and the ERB Board of 
Directors for their oversight.

Dennis A. Olaotse (Pr Eng)
Registrar
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

COMPOSITION AND ROLE OF THE BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS

Board of Directors
The Engineers Registration Board (ER) Act provides 
that the Board shall comprise seven members. During 
the year under review, the Board composition was 
constituted as indicated below in accordance with the 
provisions of Section 1 (1) of the Schedule to the ER 
Act: 

Name

Mr. Simon Mmopi                     

Mr. Justice Moilwa

Dr.  Oagile Kanyeto

Dr. S.E.M. Sebusang

Mr. Kobamelo Kgoboko

Mr. Dithuso Phetlhu

Mr. Kelebogile Shomanah

Mr. Francis Mokone

(Replacing Mr. D. Phetlhu)

Mr. Keitsile G Kutoro

(Replacing Mr. K. Shomanah)

Chairman 

Vice Chairman

Member

Member

Member

Member

Member

Member

Member

4/4

4/4

4/4

4/4

3/4

1/4

0/4

1*Appointed in January 2018

1* Appointed in January 2018

Board Designation Attendance Rate

Board Members are represented as follows:
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BOARD MEMBERS

Mr. Simon Mmopi (Pr Eng)
Chairman

Dr. Sebusang E.M. Sebusang (Pr Eng)
Member

Dr. Oagile Kanyeto (Pr Eng)
Member

Mr. Francis Mokone (Pr Eng)
Member

Mr. Justice Moilwa (Pr Eng)
Vice Chairman

Mr. Kobamelo Kgoboko (Pr Eng)
Member

Mr. Keitsile G. Kutoro (Pr Eng)
Member

Mr. Dithuso Phetlhu (Pr Eng)
Chairman

Mr. Kelebogile Shomanah
Member

RETIRED MEMBERS

BSc (Civil Engineering)

PhD (Structural Engineering)
MSc (Structural Engenering)
BASc (Civil Engineering) 

PhD (Systems and Control Engineering)
MBA
BEng (Hons) - Mechanical Engineering

MEng (Engineering Management) 
BEng (Hons) Instrumentation and Control
BTEC Diploma (Electronics and 
Microprocessors)

MSc (Power Electronics Engineering)

BEng (Electrical and Electronic 
Engineering)

Master of Engineering Science

BSc (Civil Engineering)

BSc (Electrical Engineering)
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COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

Name

Name

Name

Name

Dr. S.E.M. Sebusang

Ms. Kefilwe Letsile

Mr. Kitso Mocuminyane 

Ms. Seikaneng Diutlwileng

Mr. Ishmael Akuje

Mr. Justice Moilwa

Ms. Tekolo Modungwa

Mr. Moses Ngorima

Mr. Shadrack C. Kobole

Mr. Daniel Mahupela 

Mr. Kobamelo Kgoboko                      

Mr. Neo Kwakwa

Mr. Sedze Sosome

Prof. Joseph Chuma

Mr. Len Dimbungu

Colonel. David Hobona

Ms. Lizzy Tsheko

Dr. Oagile Kanyeto

Ms. Khupo Prudence Mabua

Mr. Thato Tsalaile

Mr. Letina Disaitsanyeng

Ms. Rebaone Lechuti-Tlhalerwa     

Ms. Same Makuku

Mr. Tusha Nkhwazi

Dr. Khaulani Fichani

Ms. Lizzy Tsheko 

Mr. Cyril Vista  

Chairman 

Member

Member

Member

Member

Chairman 

Vice Chairperson

Member

Member

Member

Chairman 

Member

Member

Member

Member

Member

Member

Chairman

Member

Member

Member

Member

Member

Member

Member

Member

Member

4/4

0/4

4/4

2/4

4/4

4/4

3/4

4/4

2/4

3/4

6/10

9/10

10/10

10/10

1/10

8/10

7/10

5/5

3/5

2/5

3/5

3/5

4/5

2/5

0/5

4/5

1/5

Designation

Designation

Designation

Designation

Attendance Rate

Attendance Rate

Attendance Rate

Attendance Rate

FINANCE, PROCUREMENT AND ASSET DISPOSAL COMMITTEE

HUMAN RESOURCE AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

REGISTRATION COMMITTEE

STANDARDS COMMITTEE
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CORPORATE RISKS

During the period under review, three key risks out of  
the top ten that the Board identified which required 
attention to mitigate their impacts were:

Exposure To Bribery
The possibility of applicants offering staff bribes to falsify 
registration was a risk, which the Board addressed through 
continuous education on issues of corruption and 
consequences of accepting bribes. The registration 
process was also reviewed to strengthen controls and 
a register of all gifts was maintained where staff made 
declarations.

IT Systems Vulnerability
Susceptibility to natural disaster, security threat or cyber-
attacks resulting in loss of critical data or access to 
network and/ or systems impacting ERB’s business 
continuity was another risk. To mitigate against it, the ICT 
infrastructure was upgraded, where server hardware 
was upgraded; firewall and antivirus were continually 
upgraded and offsite backup was commissioned.

Inability to Generate Revenues
If the Board was unable to generate anticipated revenue 
targets that would result in budget reductions or request 
for additional funds from Government over and above 
the subvention extended. Therefore, the Board had to 
develop and maintain a realistic budget and exercise 
sound financial management.  
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MANAGEMENT TEAM

Mr. Dennis A. Olaotse (Pr Eng)
Registrar

Ms. Clare H. Mosarwa (Pr Eng)
Manager - Standards

Ms. Mercy Kgosidialwa
Manager - Registration

Mr. Kagiso Mosenki (ACC. Tech)
Ag. Manager - Finance & Admin

MBA (Business Administration)
BEng EE (Electrical & Electronics)

BPhil (Philosophy Knowledge 
Management)
BBus (Business Information)

ACCA (Diploma in Accounting and 
Business)
AAT (Associate of Accounting Technician)

MBA (Administrationin Leading 
Innovation and Change)
BEng (Mechanical Engineering)



ERB TEAM

2018



2017/18 ANNUAL REPORT 13

CORPORATE STRUCTURE

Board of
Directors

Personal
Assistant to the

Registrar

* Finance and
Administration

Manager

Accounts
Officer

Office
Assistant

Information &
Communications

Technology
Officer

Standards
Manager

Standards
Officer

Registration
Officer

Database

Registration
Manager

Registration
Officer

Applications

Registration
Officer

Certificate
Issuance

* Customer 
Service and 
Registration 

Officer

* Monitoring
Manager

Monitoring
Officer

Administration
Officer

Receptionist

Registrar

Monitoring Manager and Finance Manager 
positions were vacant, while Customer 
Service and Registration Officer was also 
vacant from Dec 2017.

Note * 
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INTRODUCTION

In this report, the ERB presents results of the objectives 
it set for itself for the year under review. Performance 
and all efforts were directed to initiatives derived from 
the current strategic plan and had all been aligned 
to the plan for the year. All initiatives identified and 
to be reported upon were in line with the Balanced 
Scorecard perspectives adopted by the Board.

We like to maintain our openness towards the public,
whose interest and welfare we are to protect against 
unscrupulous engineers and it is against that 
background that our achievements or non-thereof be 
scrutinised with that in mind. 

Being also mandated to ensure professionalism in the 
industry, it is expected that as the Board we demonstrate 
through our reporting how we are progressing on this 
front for our stakeholders’ appreciation. Like other 
professional bodies, we have come under increasing 
pressure to hold engineers accountable and visibly 
so; therefore, our reporting should reflect our 
preparedness for the escalated public scrutiny.

Our strategic objectives and initiatives for the year 
were to showcase our intent pertaining regulation of 
the profession. To that end, it was our honest opinion 
that the initiatives set would set the right tone for the 
industry players to recognise and know what we exist 
for and be able to use our services meaningfully.

The following sections of this report will delve into 
creating an understanding of ERB operations, the 
perspectives and drill down into initiatives which were 
being progressed during the year under review.  Since 
performance did not meet targets in some cases, our 
stakeholders would be glad to note that challenges 
met would also be discussed and their attributes. 
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Figure 1: Registration Operational and Governance Structure

REGISTRATION FUNCTION

Registration of engineers makes up one of the core 
functions of ERB and it is for these reasons that the 
Board of Directors took a deliberate decision to 
prioritise it when beginning implementation of the 
Engineers Registration Act. The registration exercise is 
facilitated through the Registration Department whose 
responsibilities include, but are not limited to:

Implementation of accreditation and registration 
criteria and requirements for professionalism, conduct 
and service delivery in the engineering profession;
Ensuring the availability of a register of engineers 
in compliance with the Act;
Providing guidance and interpretation of the 
regulatory framework and the different standards; 
Advocating for and influencing engineering 
professionalism and providing an advisory role 
to the Registrar on the standards, code of ethics 
and registration requirements of the engineering 
profession.

Development of regulations for the registration and 
monitoring of engineering professionals
Development of eligibility requirements for registration 
with ERB
Development of standards of engineering practice 
and ethics
Promotion of the highest standards of engineering 
practice, which includes:

a)

b)

c)

d)

a)

b)

c)

d)

The Registration Function utilises the existing Board 
structures in the implementation of its core activity 
of registration of engineers. The Board Registration 
Committee was set up in line with Section 14 of the 
Engineers Registration Act to deal with matters of 
registration of engineers, and discipline specific 
subcommittees were also set up to help facilitate this 
activity in a more effective manner.

Board of 
Directors

Registration 
Committee

Finance, 
Procurement and 
Asset Disposal 

Committee

Mining Engineering 
Professional 
Assessment 
Committee

Mechanical 
Engineering 
Professional 
Assessment 
Committee

Civil Engineering 
Professional 
Assessment 
Committee

Human Resource 
and Governance 

Committee

Standards and 
Professional 

Practice 
Committee

Electrical 
Engineering 
Professional 
Assessment 
Committee

STANDARDS DEVELOPMENT FUNCTION

The department’s delivery of its core mandate is 
dependent on its alignment to the organizational vision. 
The Standards Department is responsible for the 
following activities:

Building and nurturing relationships with stakeholders
Development of collaboration frameworks with other 
entities
Educating the public about ERB mandate and 
operations
Lobbying and advocacy to further the interest of the 
Board
Mobilization of resources in collaboration with other 
departments
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OVERVIEW OF ERB OPERATIONS (cont.)

The Department carries out its standards development 
through external stakeholders using the following 
governance and operational structure:

Board 
of 

Directors

Standards and 
Professional 

Practice Committee

Professional Standards 
Setting Committees

Mechanical 
Mining
Electrical
Civil

Figure 2: Standards Operational and Governance Structure

Figure 3: High Level Standards Development Process

The following process will be followed when developing engineering standards from April 2018 going forward:

Identification of needs for 
standards, through ERB, 
SPPC and Engineering 
Community and other 
stakeholders.

Evaluation of the needs, so as to 
establish importance to the profession, 
relevance, protection of health and safety 
as well as protection of the environment.

Drafting of the standard and discussion 
by the relevant PSSC.  Approval of draft 
standard by SPPC for public comments.

Disposal of comments, if any, by PSSC and 
incorporating comments into the draft standard 
if deemed relevant and appropriate.

Circulate draft standard for public 
comments for two (2) months.

Approval of standards by the SPPC 
of the Board.

Approval of standards by the Board.

MONITORING FUNCTION

Monitoring should not be regarded as merely a 
management or reporting requirement. Rather, it 
should be regarded as an opportunity to nurture 
an inclusive and purposeful monitoring culture to 
make implementation and management effective 
and interesting as well as to ease gathering of data 
and evidence objectively to back achievements 
and make informed decisions. In that regard the 
Monitoring Department monitors the high entry 
standard for engineering practice in collaboration 

with the Registration Department in terms of the 
specified appropriate requirements and criteria 
for registration of engineers and as per section 
8 of Engineers Registration Act of 2009 CAP. 
61:06. Hence, the key functions of the Monitoring 
Department are as follows;

To monitor standards of engineering practice and 
ethics; and

To conduct or authorize inquiries regarding any 
alleged professional misconduct of any registered 
engineer.

To effectively monitor engineering practices in 
the country with the aim to decrease engineering 
malpractice and negligence in Botswana

a)

b)

a)

Monitoring Department Objectives
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Improve monitoring
Increase awareness of ERB amongst customers 
and key stakeholders
Development of a monitoring function

The Engineers Registration Act, 2009 CAP (61:06);
Engineers Registration Regulations (2016);
Code of Professional Conduct and Ethics (Draft); 
And any rules and regulations governing the conduct 
of engineers practicing in Botswana.

To monitor standards of engineering practice and 
ethics; and
To conduct or authorize inquiries regarding any 
alleged professional misconduct of any registered 
engineer.

Registered engineers apply their knowledge and 
skill in the interest of the safety, health and welfare 
of the public;
Perform services only in areas of their competence;
Execute their work with integrity, sincerity and in 
accordance with generally accepted norms of 
engineering professional conduct;
Act as faithful agents or trustees for each employer 
or client;
Uphold the dignity, standing and reputation of the 
profession;
Continuously improve their professional skills and 
those of their subordinates or engineers under their 
supervision;
Encourage excellence and high-performance 
standards within the engineering profession; and
Protect the environment for present and future 
generations.

b)

c)

a)
b)
c)
d)

a)

b)

a)

b)
c)

d)

e)

f)

g)

h)

The Monitoring Department is in place to ensure compliance 
with the following available instruments:

Standards of Engineering Practice and Ethics
The Monitoring Department monitors the high entry 
standard for engineering practice in collaboration with 
the Registration Department in terms of the specified 
appropriate requirements and criteria for registration 
of engineers and as per section 8 of Engineers 
Registration Act, 2009 CAP. 61:06. For the renewal 
of practicing certificate, professional engineers 
are required to undertake continuing professional 
development to keep abreast with engineering 
knowledge and practices and in line with section 11 of 
the Engineers registration regulations (2016).

Code of Professional Conduct and Ethics
The Code of professional Conduct and ethics exist to 
protect the welfare and interest of the public; therefore, 
the aim of the Monitoring Department is to use the tool 
to monitor registered engineers to find out if they are 

following the prescribed code of professional conduct 
and ethics in their day to day engineering practice. The 
Code of professional Conduct and ethics is drafted in 
such a way that it includes the following objectives 
intended to maintain high standard of engineering 
practice and to safeguard the interest of the public in 
terms of their safety and welfare:

In practice, it is expected that there will be cases of sub-
standard professional engineering work and violations 
to the Code of Professional Conduct and Ethics. If not 
properly monitored, such case will undermine public 
confidence in the Board. As per section 4A (2) of the 
Engineers Registration Act, 2009 CAP. 61:06, the 
Board’s function under the Monitoring Department are:

The Monitoring Department will investigate any complaint, 
conduct or authorize inquiries to any alleged misconduct 
that has been brought against an engineer. The process 
is intended to account for any further prosecution by 
the relevant authorities if the engineer is found guilty of 
any civil or criminal offence.

Review 
Monitoring Strategy 
and operational 
context and clarify 
role and 
responsibilities

Get ready 
to monitor by 
reinforcing 
monitoring 
framework

Use 
Monitoring data 
and information 
in management 
and decision 
making

Monitor - 
collect data, 
analyze 
and report

Figure 4: Monitoring Function Approach

FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION FUNCTION

The department coordinates the five (5) functions of; Human 
Resource Management, Information Communication 
Technology (ICT), Procurement, Financial/ Assets 
Management and Corporate Governance in support of 
other ERB departments and the Board. 

As the Board is composed of members who are 
only engineers, the two committees of, Finance 
Procurement & Assets Disposal Committee and the 
Human Resource & Governance Committee supports 
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OVERVIEW OF ERB OPERATIONS (cont.)

FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION FUNCTION (cont.)

the Board on technical aspects of budgeting, financial 
management, risk management, audit facilitation, 
payroll management, procurement, human resource 
management, contract administration, and information 
technology hardware & software support. 

During the year 2017/18 the department has facilitated a 
minimum of two (2) short-term training per an employee, 
this is geared towards achieving improved service 
delivery and staff motivation. As per expectation, the 
department has continuously developed and reviewed 
relevant policies that supports its functions; e.g. The 
Training & Development Policies, The Procurement 
& Tender Regulations & Procedures, Conditions of 
Employment Policies and the department is working on 
other relevant policies; The Finance and Accounting 
Manual, The ICT Policy, and Staff Retention Policy 
among others. 

The department is forward looking in that it is always 
researching and developing innovative ways to improve 
its functions and support services and leverages on 
ICT to achieve this. The department is in the brink of 
introducing an Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) 
software that will enhance the operational functionality 
of all the departments. Other projects the department 
is facilitating includes the procuring of an office 
building to be owned by ERB to reduce operational 
costs (rental compared to ownership), Board members 
training on corporate governance, revamping of the 
organizational website linked to the ERP System, and 
establishing a client’s media centre.

STRATEGY MANAGEMENT

The Engineers Registration Board continues to review 
its strategic plan with the hope to extend its mandate. 
In October 2017, the ERB team met and reviewed its 
strategy to ascertain its continued relevance to the 
engineering industry and operational environment. 
The Board reviews its performance against strategy 
through monthly updates by the Secretariat and 
quarterly reports that are sent and discussed by the 
Board of Directors.  

The 2017 – 2021 Strategic plan follows the completion 
of the 2012 – 2014 one which was largely focussed on 

the establishment of ERB. The new strategic plan is 
geared towards transitioning the organization towards 
operational stability and performance growth. While 
this strategy acknowledges that there remains carry 
over establishment objectives and activities, it focusses 
on strengthening the organizations core mandate, and 
improving access through implementation of strategic 
stakeholder engagement initiatives.

ERB’S KEY STRATEGIC THEMES

ERB at its initial stages opted to phase in its key 
elements of its mandate with the first phase being 
building capacity on registration and its supporting 
processes. The emerging strategy in 2017 – 2021, 
sees the Board introducing the second phase, which is 
the monitoring of activities and conduct of engineering 

professionals. Figure 5 below shows the three key 
strategic themes that will be a foundation for the ERB 
strategic direction. These themes will further provide 
a guide for future strategic development, help in the 
structuring of the strategy as well as maintain focus 
during execution. 

Reduce Malpractice 
and Negligence

To reduce the number of 
engineering malpractice/ 
negligence in Botswana

Financial Sustenance
To generate 70% of the 

ERB budget

Register Engineers 
To register 90% of the 

eligible pool of engineers in 
Botswana

Figure 5: Key Strategic Themes



OVERVIEW OF ERB OPERATIONS (cont.)

2017/18 ANNUAL REPORT 19

For 2017 – 2021 ERB intends to follow the following key 
strategies to achieve the overall vision:

Financial stability through revenue diversification
The current major source of revenue for ERB is government 
subvention and, to some extent, the fees generated 
from registration of engineers. Consequently, it is 
prudent for ERB to generate additional revenue to 
augment the current sources and be able to effectively 
deliver on its mandate without being hindered by 
financial constraints.

Improved registration through leveraged technology
Registration management, value, and services are core 
to the organization. It will be increasingly important for 
ERB to fully leverage technology toward the delivery 
of its mandate and achievement of its registration 
targets. Potential areas of consideration include online 
registration, automatic renewals, and real-time registration 
reports.

Increased Quality Through Professional Fees
The quality of engineering practice in the country is 
influenced by the prevailing professional fees within 
the industry. ERB is in an advantageous position to 
advocate for change to Engineering Professional Fees, 
and thus improve the overall quality of engineering 
service.

Increased Quality Through Effective Monitoring
Monitoring is core to the organization and is essential 
in ensuring compliance to standards. The priority for 
ERB during the previous strategy was the registration 

process.  While strengthening registration remains a 
priority for the new strategic period, more emphasis is now 
placed on the monitoring function of the organization 
to deliver the aims of the Engineers Registration Act.

Increased Compliance Through Awareness and 
Engagement
ERB recognizes that the magnitude of its mandate 
requires broad support and participation of stakeholders 
for effective execution. The wide range of stakeholders 
(e.g. Government, engineering companies, practicing 
engineers, engineering bodies, general public, etc.) 
must be well informed, engaged and coordinated 
to ultimately achieve the ambitions of the Act. A 
multifaceted approach must be taken to adequately 
leverage this vast array of stakeholders and deliver on 
the aims of the Act.

Strengthened Compliance Through Registration of 
Companies
Engineering companies play a critical role to support 
Government expectations of quality engineering 
services. They must ensure that the engineers they 
employ and engage are registered with the Engineers 
Registration Board and uphold the standards of the 
profession. They must also actively participate in the 
continued education and reinforcement of engineering 
standards and ethics amongst these engineers. ERB 
can more effectively influence the employers’ role to 
ensure quality engineering services through expanding 
its mandate to register engineering companies. 
However, the mandate can only be expanded through 
amendment of the Engineers Registration Act.



MANDATE

VISION

MISSION

Ethical engineering practice

To protect the welfare and interest of the public by regulating the activities and conduct of engineers, engineering technologists and 
engineering technicians as well as promoting the highest standards of engineering practice”.

Regulate the activities and conduct of engineering professionals in Botswana in accordance with the functions and powers conferred 
upon it by the Engineers Registration Act Cap 61:06 of 2009 as amended

Integrity

Registered Engineers

Financial

F1. Generate revenue

F2. Financial Stewardship

Learning and Growth

LG1.Manage 
Organizational performance

IP1. Efficient registration 
process

LG2. Improve employee 
satisfaction

Internal Processes

IP2. Improve monitoring

IP3. Increase awareness

IP4. Enhance ERB Capacity

Customer/ Stakeholder

C1. Register Engineers

C2. Decrease malpractice

C3. Improve C/S satisfaction

Financial self-sustenance Reduced malpractice & negligence

Exellence TransparencyInnovation Value CreationVALUES

THEMES

PERSPECTIVE
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STRATEGIC PROJECTS

Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) System
ERB has been using non-integrated systems to manage 
its financial and registration activities. This has posed 
reporting challenges for the Board as too much time is 
spent on consolidating data from different systems to 
form a coherent picture of the organisation’s wellbeing. 
It is against this background that the Board sanctioned 
the procurement of an integrated Financial, Payroll 
and HR and Registration Management System, the 
implementation of which is expected to be completed 
by the end of the 2018/19 financial year. This ERP 
system is expected to assist the Board in leveraging 
technology for more effective service delivery.

ICT Infrastructure
To address IT vulnerability (e.g. to natural disaster, 
security threat/cyber-attacks) resulting in loss of critical 
data or access to network and or systems and 
impacting ERB ability to deliver its services, ERB carried 
out an upgrade of its ICT infrastructure. The server 
hardware, firewalls and antiviruses were put in place 
and offsite backup arrangement was procured through 
an outsourced service provider. This will continuously 
be assessed to ensure that credible backups are 
maintained such that systems are always operating at 
optimal level, even when backups are restored from 
time to time.

Marketing
The board recognised that many of the challenges it 
experienced in carrying out its mandate were due to 
little market awareness of the Board and its functions. 

A decision was taken to develop a three-year marketing 
strategy which the Board approved in May 2017. 
Due to financial challenges, the commencement of 
the implementation of the strategy was deferred to 
the 2018/19 financial year when adequate funding 
would have been arranged for. The successful 
implementation of this strategy is expected to result 
in an improved perception index for the organisation, 
in addition to increased awareness and greater 
engagement of ERB’s stakeholders.

STRATEGIC THEME 1:

Register Engineers 
    To register 70% of the eligible pool of engineers in   
    Botswana

Registration of engineers
The Board recognised that registration management, 
value, and services were core to the organization, 
hence it was paramount for ERB to fully leverage 
technology toward the delivery of its mandate and 
achievement of its registration targets. The Board has 
therefore considered areas such as online registration, 
automatic renewals, and real-time registration reports 
as some of the value-adding initiatives.

To this end, the Board’s goal has been defined as 
to register all eligible engineers, technologists and 
technicians in Botswana and for the year under review, 
a target of 70% was set. This target was set against the 
backdrop of the 2015 engineers survey which 

estimated the population of engineers in Botswana to 
be in the region of five thousand five hundred (5500).

The Board was not only able to exceed registration 
performance in the 2016/2017 fiscal year (figure 6) 
but was also able to surpass its registration target of 
three thousand eight hundred and fifty (3850) by and 
accumulating a record number of registrations at four 
thousand one hundred and ninety-six (4196) (figure 7).

The achievement of these targets was not without 
challenges, which included amongst others, a continued 
hesitation to respond to the call for registration by 
the potential registrants, a misinterpretation of the 
registration categories and submission of fraudulent 
documents in an attempt to be registered with the 
Board. To counter these, the Secretariat continued to 
engage in rigorous public education which focused on 
demystifying some of the assumptions which resulted in 
resistance to registration, simplifying the understanding 
of the registration requirements. Furthermore, matters 
of attempted fraud were routed to the relevant law 
enforcement authorities, resulting in prosecution in 
some of the cases.
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Registration of engineers (cumulative)
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Figure 6: Yearly Engineer Registration

Figure 7: Registration of Engineers (Cumulative)

Figure 8: Registration per Discipline
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Efficient Registration Process
The Board found it befitting to enthusiastically respond 
to client concerns regarding the long application 
processing turnaround time by pursuing the reduction 
of these times as a strategic initiative so as to maintain 
an active focus on it. In addition to this, other initiatives 
were identified and found to have the potential to 
have an unquestionable effect on the strategic goal of 
ensuring an efficient registration process. One of these 
initiatives involved working towards decreasing the 
applications that had been collected but not meeting 
requirements (pseudo-backlog) which had resulted in 
longer turnaround times than anticipated as applicants 
were required to submit additional information. The 
Secretariat identified the major bottlenecks which included 
non-compliant applications. These applications were 

tracked through a rigorous system and ultimatums 
issued to all those who continued to not comply. This 
strategy resulted in a 50% reduction in this pseudo-
backlog by year end, having a positive impact on 
both the registration turnaround times and revenue 
collected.

As the Board’s activities continued to grow, the need 
for more registration support began to emerge as 
evidenced by, amongst others, increased registration 
enquiries, increased volumes of walk-in clients, and 
the growth in the number of new infrastructure 
development projects.  

Increase awareness
In crafting its five-year strategy (2017 – 2021) ERB 
recognised that one of the key determinants of 
successful implementation of the Act was a well 
informed and engaged stakeholder community. It is 
against this backdrop that the Board set increasing 
awareness amongst its range of stakeholders as one of 
the key goals with multiple metrics set as performance 
measures.

In the year under review, the Secretariat successfully 
developed and began the implementation of a detailed 
marketing and stakeholder engagement plan. This plan 
was derived from the three-year marketing strategy 
(2017 – 2020) and implementation budget which was 
crafted and successfully approved by the Board in 
2017. Implementation of the engagement plan began 
with a series of targeted workshops which focused 
on educating engineers on the requirements of the 
post-graduate engineering experience competence 
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report, and the requirements and guidelines of the 
Continuing Professional Development (CPD) Policy. In 
total thirty (30) workshops were held in the year under 
review in locations such as Francistown, Kasane, 
Gaborone, Jwaneng, Maun, Palapye and Orapa 
attendance of which is indicated in Table 1 below. The 
wide geographical spread was a deliberate strategy 
of reaching as many stakeholders as possible given 
the limitation of the ERB office only being in Gaborone. 
Moreover, the Secretariat facilitated workshops which 
were upon request by organisations such as Botswana 
Telecommunications Corporation, Majwe Mining, 
China Civil Engineering and Construction and ADP 
Kukama (Pty) Ltd. 

The Board embarked on a consultation exercise with 
its primary stakeholders, aimed at soliciting ideas that 
will influence the review of the Engineers Registration 
Act (ERAct) from November 2017 through to March 
2018. This exercise is envisaged to end in December 
2018. 

Workshops held in 2017/ 2018

Type of 
Workshop

Review of Act 
consultation

CPD Roll-out

Competency 
Report Writing 

14

17

19

874

1554

521

Number of 
workshops

Attendance

Table 1: Stakeholder Workshop Attendance 

Figure 9: Number of Stakeholder

Figure 10: Stakeholder Workshop Attendance    
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Figure 11: Attendees at the Francistown Workshop Figure 13: Attendees at the Gaborone Workshop

Figure 12: Attendees at the Orapa Workshop Figure 14: Attendees at the Jwaneng Workshop 
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The success of these workshops was immediate 
judging by the improved submission of competence 
reports thereafter. The practising certificate renewals 
also increased due to the fact that part of the workshops 
was meant for clarifying the CPD requirements for 
renewing practising certificates.

The Secretariat also embarked on a project to 
upgrade the existing website, in an effort to make it 
more attractive and more leverageable for information 
dissemination purposes. This project was successfully 
completed in November 2017 and the success of the 
upgrade was already evident judging by the increase 
in visits to the page. Facebook was another platform 
that was leveraged for information dissemination and 
feedback collection taking into consideration the high 
presence of ERB’s stakeholders on mobile computing 
platforms.

Other platforms which the marketing strategy recommended 
for use were print media and mass email and these 
were utilised to disseminate different types of 
messages to stakeholders. The success of the utilisation 
of these platforms was evident in the overwhelming 
responses to the invitations to workshops and the call 
for comments of the proposed review of the Engineers 
Registration Act.

Enhance ERB Capacity
To conclude the ERB establishment process and 
ensure all essential capacity requirements of the 
organization are in place. To effectively carry out its 
mandate, the Board took a strategic decision to 
fully capacitate itself, which includes staffing the 

organizational structure, addressing gaps and/or 
clarifications in the Act, establishing all necessary ERB 
policies, documenting and implementing required 
standards, and establishing key operational and 
support systems.

During 2017/18 financial year, the Board implemented 
the Continuing Professional Development (CPD) Policy 
which required that renewal of practising certificate for 
those registered in the Professional Category be on 
the basis of CPD carried out for that year. Standards 
under development are the a) Professional Practice 
Standards b) Initial Professional Development Policy 
c) Guidelines for Mentorship and Coaching which will 
be completed in December 2018.

ERB and BQA Memorandum of Understanding
In anticipation of being a strategic resource in the 
accreditation of engineering programmes in the country, 
the Board entered into a Memorandum of Understanding 
(MOU) with the Botswana Qualifications Authority 
(BQA). This MOU sought to establish a framework that 
will enable co-operation and collaboration between 
the two entities, after having recognised the critical 
role they each play in developing the engineering 
profession and assisting in attaining high standards of 
delivery of education and training. The purpose of the 
MOU has been defined as to provide a framework for 
parties to cooperate and communicate constructively 
in order to carry out their independent responsibilities 
as per their statutes, and to contribute to the efficient 
and effective regulation of Engineering education and 
training laws, amongst others.

Figure 15: ERB BQA MOU Signing



ENGINEERS REGISTRATION BOARD  ETHICAL ENGINEERING PRACTICE26

OVERVIEW OF ERB OPERATIONS (cont.)

Staffing the organisation
Staffing the organisation to full establishment has 
been top of the Board’s agenda since establishment 
of the organisation, however financial constraints have 
compelled the Board to do this in a phased approach, 
which involved staffing the functions which were 
identified as instrumental in kickstarting the regulation. 
These included the Standards function which was key 
to defining standards to be used in the registration of 
engineers, and Registration function which was necessary 
for implementation of the registration standards.

In the 2017/2018 financial year the Board intensified 
the organisational staffing efforts by commencing the 
recruitment process for the engagement of managers in 
Registration, Monitoring in Finance and Administration 
to enable full resourcing at managerial level in the 
beginning of the 2018/19 financial year.

Manage organisational performance
To ensure effective carrying out of its mandate, the 
Board found it befitting to ensure effective management 
of performance across the organization at corporate 
and individual levels, and to continuously drive toward 
improved performance across the organization. A 
Strategic Review was held on the 20th and 21st of 
October 2017.

Currently for the year 2017/18, Strategic performance 
indicates that performance is at 60% which is the 
number of objectives that are Green and those that 
are Amber. 40% of the set strategic objectives were 
in the Red. Green objectives (at 26.7%) are those that 
have met their targets or exceeded the set targets, 

while Amber (at 33.3%) are those objectives that are 
progressing but need to be monitored closely as 
current achievement show possibilities of not meeting 
target. Those in the Red are those that are completely 
off target or not started at all.

Status

Green

Amber

Red

4

5

6

27%

33%

40%

Number

Table 2: Performance on Strategic Objectives

Figure 16: Organisational Performance

Green

Amber

Red

Improve employee satisfaction
The strategic plan identified improvement of employee 
satisfaction as a key enabler toward improved 

Strategic perfomance

organizational performance. Employee attitudes 
typically reflect the moral of the company. In areas 
of customer service, happy employees are extremely 
important because they represent the company to the 
public. ERB however appreciates that satisfaction is 
not linked solely to compensation, although a raise or 
benefits will probably improve employee contentment, 
at least temporarily, but small, inexpensive changes 
can have a long-term impact as evidenced by the low 
staff turnover which is currently at 7.7%.

It is on the above premise, that the Board has committed 
to the following to raise the level of employee 
satisfaction:

Give Employees More Control - ERB has offered 
employees alternative work schedules such as 
flexitime which was embraced, and one employee 
took up the opportunity.
Encourage Social Connections - During the reporting 
period, the organization embarked on two retreats 
which were to facilitate for team building and 
socialization of staff, an initiative aimed at boosting 
the mood and contentment amongst staff. During 
the retreat staff was trained on management 
of chronic stress which was seen as a major 
contributor to health issues evidenced among 
staff such as weight gain, weakened immune 
system, increased risk of disease, and fatigue. 
ERB encourages employees to keep fit and 
reduce stress levels and has taken to pay annual 
fees towards gym membership for staff. Another 
initiative ERB has encouraged is celebration of staff 
birthdays which all staff contribute towards, as well 
as Christmas Parties. 
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Staff development and training
ERB strives to create an atmosphere of growth - Jobs 
are more than a source of income. Jobs are a venue 
for employees to grow and learn. As part of ensuring 
that ERB is able to achieve its strategic goals, the 
organization has placed paramount to its activities, 
the development and training of its staff. The Board 
creates an atmosphere of growth by providing 
training, benchmarking, and celebration of staff 
accomplishments. 

Annually, the Board identifies areas critical to achievement 
of strategy and skill gaps of its employees to draw-
up a training plan. ERB during this reporting period, 
took its staff to different training institutions as reflected 
in Table 4 below, in order to upskill them with the 
necessary tools for them to help drive the strategic 
objectives.

ERB also encourages employees to take risks and learn 
new skills which are supported through development 
and training of those identified skills. Bearing in mind 
the lean organisational structure, the Secretariat 
resolved to utilise its available talent pool and assign 
one of its members as a Customer Service resource 
responsible for ensuring implementation of the 
customer satisfaction framework. One of the primary 
tasks was to begin collecting customer feedback 
on the range of services provided by the Secretariat 
and the feedback collected has been instrumental in 
enhancing the quality of the services and the related 
value-adds.

Staff during a colleagues birthday

Staff during an annual christmas party

Staff during a Wellness Day

Staff being presented with gift during christmas dinner
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Position

Accounts Officer 

Admin Officer

ICT Officer 

Ass. Admin Officer

Receptionist

Acting Registration Manager

Registration Officer Applications

Personal Assistant

Chief Executive Officer

2017

2017

2017

2017

2017

2017

2017

2017

2017

2017

2017

2017

2017

2017

2017

2017

2017

2017

2017

2017

Application & Verification of Tax Clearance Certificate

Performance Development planning & Performance Masterclass

4th Africa Congress of Accountants

Labour Relations updates & Discipline Grievances Procedures

Performance Development planning & Performance Masterclass

Administering Windows

PA’s & Office Administrators course 

CIPS Advanced Certificate

Customer Service Excellence 

Lean six Sigma Green Belt

Prince II Project Management Practioner

BOS ISO 9001:2015 QMS Documentation 

Understanding- BOS ISO 9001:2015

Client Orientation, Customer Service & Complaint Resolution

Risk Management 

Prince II Project Management Practioner

Effective Records Information and data management standards 

PAs & Office Administrators 

Being a Director Part 5

Governance of Ethics

Botswana Unified Revenue Service

Africa Business Solutions International

Africa Congress of Accounts - Uganda

South African Corporate Training Events Management

Africa Business Solutions International

It-IQ Botswana

Mzingeli Trading & Skills Development

Chartered Institute of Procurement & Supply

Mzingeli Trading & Skills Development 

2KO, JHB

Innolead

Botswana Bureau of Standards

Botswana Bureau of Standards

South African Corporate Training Events Management

University of Pretoria

Innolead

Mzingeli Trading & Skills Development

Mzingeli Trading & Skills Development

Institute of Directors South Africa

Institute of Directors South Africa

Course Institution Year

Table 3: 2017/18 Staff Training and Development
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STRATEGIC THEME 2:

Reduce Malpractice and Negligence
    To reduce the number of engineering malpractice/  
    negligence in Botswana 

Decrease malpractice
To effectively monitor engineering practices in the country 
with the aim to decrease engineering malpractice and 
negligence in Botswana. A total of 23 cases of fraud 
and malpractice were lodged with the police, 1 of the 
suspects has since skipped the country, 4 cases are 
currently with the Department of Public Prosecution 
awaiting trial, 8 are awaiting a response from Interpol, 
1 is under investigation at Serious Crime while 9 
have been closed without further action. During the 
reporting period, 1 case individual was sentenced 
by the Magistrate Court for trying to be registered by 
submitting fraudulent documents.

Improve monitoring
Monitoring is core to the organization and is essential 
in ensuring compliance to standards.  The priority for 
ERB during the previous strategy was the registration 
process.   While strengthening registration remains a 
priority for the coming strategic period, more emphasis 
must now be placed on the monitoring function of 
the organization to deliver the aims of the Engineers 
Registration Act.

Engineering companies play a critical role to support 
Government expectations of quality engineering 
services. They must ensure that the engineers they 
employ and engage are registered with the Engineers 

Registration Board and uphold the standards of the 
profession. They must also actively participate in the 
continued education and reinforcement of engineering 
standards and ethics amongst these engineers. ERB 
can more effectively influence the employers’ role to 
ensure quality engineering services through expanding 
its mandate to register engineering companies. 

STRATEGIC THEME 3:

Financial Sustenance
    To generate 42% of the ERB Budget

Generation of revenue
During 2017/18 the total income was P14,544,437 and 
the subvention component of the revenue stood at 
P6,779,520, therefore other revenue sources constituted 
53.4% of the total income.  ERB showed an improvement on 

revenue collection from alternative sources and away 
from the dependence on government subventions 
as illustrated in Figure 17 below. In 2016/17 revenue 
generated from such sources (registration fees, 
application fees, practicing fees, workshops etc) 
was P6,499,220 compared to P7,764,917 in 2017/18 
showing a 19.4% increase. While the subvention 
increased by 11.5% from P6,080,070 to P6,779,520.00 
during this period. The organization seek further 
revenue streams and cost cutting measures 
and in the financial year 2018/19 some revenue 
generating activities will include; sale of ERB branded 
merchandise, engineering levy on projects etc. 
Furthermore, ERB has already started to motivate for 
acquisition of office building to save on rental costs 
in the future and organise the annual engineering 
conference.
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Figure 17: Revenue
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Financial Stewardship 
The organization adheres to best financial management 
practices and ensures that the expenditure is always 
within budget. During the 2017/18 financial year total 
expenditure was P11,449,460 against a total income 
of P14,738,959 resulting in a surplus of P3,289,499. 

ERB has had surpluses over the years as illustrated 
by Figure 18 below. The surpluses/ accumulated funds 
which stand at P10,169,554 in total and the bulk of it 
will be utilised as part of the funding to procure ERB 
offices.

Income vs Expenditure

2015 2016 2017 2018

16,000,000.00 

14,000,000.00

12,000,000.00

10,000,000.00

8,000,000.00

6,000,000.00

4,000,000.00

2,000,000.00

-

Figure 18: Income vs Expenditure

Total Income Operating expenses Surplus

Conclusion
The performance of the Board continued to grow in 
the year under review and that was tantamount to the 
contributions of all stakeholders involved. One cannot 
overemphasize the focus given to the strategic intent 
of the Board that is responsible for the upward trend 

in performance, albeit with the inherent challenges of 
ensuring full compliance to the Act.

Going forward, there has to be a sustained drive 
towards improving the value proposition to ensure 
attainment of a fully regulated market.

My appreciation goes to the parent ministry, Ministry 
of Infrastructure and Housing Development for their 
continued support; the Governing Body of ERB for 
their guidance and oversight; and the ERB staff for 
their dedication.
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STATEMENT OF RESPONSBILITY BY THE MEMBERS OF THE BOARD for the year ended 31 March 2018

The members of the board of Engineers Registration 
Board are responsible for the annual financial statements 
and all other information presented therewith. Their 
responsibility includes the maintenance of true and 
fair financial records and the preparation of annual 
financial statements in accordance with International 
Financial Reporting Standards and in the manner 
required by the Engineers Registration (Amendment) 
Act, 2013.

The Engineers Registration Board (“Board”) maintains 
systems of internal control, which are designed to provide 
reasonable assurance that the records accurately 
reflect its transactions and to provide protection 
against serious misuse or loss of Board’s assets. 

The members of the board are also responsible for 
the design, implementation, and maintenance and 
monitoring of these systems of internal financial control. 
Nothing has come to the attention of the members of 
the board to indicate that any significant breakdown in 
the functioning of these systems has occurred during 
the year under review.

The going concern basis has been adopted in 
preparing the annual financial statements. The members 
of the board  have no reason to believe that the Board 
will not be a going concern in the foreseeable future, 
based on the continuous support by the Government 
of Botswana through the Ministry of Infrastructure and 
Housing Development.

Our external auditors conduct an examination of the 
financial statements in conformity with International 
Standards on Auditing, which include tests of transactions 
and selective tests of internal accounting controls. 
Regular meetings are held between management and 
our external auditors to review matters relating to 
internal controls and financial reporting. The external 
auditors have unrestricted access to the members of 
the board of the board.

The annual financial statements on pages 38 to 58 
and supplementary information on Annexure I were 
authorised for issue by the members of the board on 7 
December 2018 and are signed on its behalf by:

Member Member
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Our opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair 
view of the financial position of Engineers Registration 
Board (the “Board”) as at 31 March 2018, and its 
financial performance and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards.

What we have audited
Engineers Registration Board’s financial statements set 
out on pages 38 to 58 comprise:

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International 
Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under 
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 
section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion.

Independence
We are independent of the Board in accordance with 
the Botswana Institute of Chartered Accountants Code of 
Ethics (the “BICA Code”) and the ethical requirements 
that are relevant to our audit of financial statements 
in Botswana. We have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements 
and the BICA Code. The BICA Code is consistent with
the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’

Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (Parts A 
and B).

Key audit matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our 
professional judgment, were of most significance 
in our audit of the financial statements of the current 
period. These matters were addressed in the context 
of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and 
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide 
a separate opinion on these matters. We communicate 
the key audit matter that relates to the audit of the 
financial statements of the current period in the table 
below.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, Plot 50371, Fairground Office Park, Gaborone, P O Box 294, Gaborone, Botswana 
T: (267) 395 2011, F: (267) 397 3901, www.pwc.com/bw

Country Senior Partner: B D Phirie
Partners: R Binedell, A S Edirisinghe, L Mahesan, R van Schalkwyk, S K K Wijesena

TO THE MINISTER OF INFRASTRUCTURE AND HOUSING DEVELOPMENT

Report on the audit of the financial statements

the statement of financial position as at 31 March 
2018;
the statement of comprehensive income for the year 
then ended;
the statement of changes in funds for the year then 
ended;
the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; 
and
the notes to the financial statements, which include 
a summary of significant accounting policies.



Accounting for revenue received from members

Revenue from members represents 53% of total revenue of the Board. It 
consists of registration fees, application fees, membership fees and practicing 
fees (together “the fees”) collected from existing and prospective members 
during the year ended 31 March 2018. As at 31 March 2018, included in the 
trade payables balance is an amount of P 3,808,225 that relates to income 
received in advance and deposits from prospective members (Refer to Notes 
6 and 7 to the financial statements in this regard).

Fees are received in advance and only recognised as revenue when a 
specific act is executed (Refer to Note 1.12 to the financial statements).

The recognition of revenue and revenue received in advance was considered 
to be a matter of most significance to our audit due to the magnitude of the 
balances and the significant volumes of fees received during the year.

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our audit procedures included among others:

For fees recognised in revenue during the year, we tested a sample of fees 
by tracing the recorded transactions through to supporting documentation 
without exceptions,

We obtained a list of all fees recorded during the year as income received 
in advance, and on a sample basis, through inspection of supporting 
documentation confirmed that these fees have been appropriately accounted 
for, and

For deposits received from prospective members, obtained a list of all deposits 
received during the year, and on a sample basis, through inspection of 
supporting documentation confirmed that these deposits have been 
appropriately accounted for.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (cont.)

Other information
The members of the board are responsible for the 
other information. The other information comprises the 
information included in the Engineers Registration 
Board Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 
31 March 2018, which we obtained prior to the date of 
this auditor’s report and other sections of Engineers 
Registration Board Annual Report 2017/18, which 

are expected to be made available to us after that 
date. Other information does not include the financial 
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover 
the other information and we do not and will not express 
an audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion 
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, 
our responsibility is to read the other information 
identified above and, in doing so, consider whether 
the other information is materially inconsistent with the 
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the 
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (cont.)

If, based on the work we have performed on the other 
information that we obtained prior to the date of this 
auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information, we are required 
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this 
regard.

Responsibilities of the members of the board for the 
financial statements
The members of the board are responsible for the 
preparation of the financial statements that give a 
true and fair view in accordance with International 
Financial Reporting Standards and in the manner 
required by the Engineers Registration (Amendment) 
Act, 2013, and for such internal control as the member 
of the board determine is necessary to enable the 
preparation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the members of 
the board are responsible for assessing the Board’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 
applicable, matters related to going concern and using 
the going concern basis of accounting unless the 
member of the board either intend to liquidate the Board 
or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative 
but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial 
statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high 
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect 
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements 
can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial 
statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise 
professional judgement and maintain professional 
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement 
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, design and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence 
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than 
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional

omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 
control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant 
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose 
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Board’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by the members of 
the board. 

Conclude on the appropriateness of the members 
of the board’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence 
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the Board’s ability to continue 
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention 
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in 
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions 
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the 
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events 
or conditions may cause the Board to cease to 
continue as a going concern.
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Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and 
content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements 
represent the underlying transactions and events in 
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We have received all information and explanation 
which, to the best of our knowledge and
belief, were necessary for the performance of our 
duties;
The accounts and related records of the Engineers 
Registration Board have been properly
kept;
The Engineers Registration Board has complied 
with all the financial provisions of the Act;
and
Financial statements prepared by the Engineers 
Registration Board was prepared on a basis consistent 
with that of the preceding year except for the 
adoption of new and revised International Financial 
Reporting Standards as stated in Note 2 to the 
financial statements.

We communicate with the members of the board regarding, 
among other matters, the planned scope and timing 
of the audit and significant audit findings, including 
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 
identify during our audit.

From the matters communicated with the members of 
the board, we determine those matters that were of 
most significance in the audit of the financial statements 
of the current period and are therefore the key audit 
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s 
report unless law or regulation precludes public 
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare 
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not 
be communicated in our report because the adverse 
consequences of doing so would reasonably be 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (cont.)

expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of 
such communication.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
In accordance with Section 23 of the Engineers Registration 
(Amendment) Act, 2013, we confirm that:

Individual practicing member: Kosala Wijesena 
Registration number: 20000110

Gaborone

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME for the year ended 31 March 2018

Revenue

Operating expenses

Other operating income

Operating surplus

Finance income

Surplus  for the year 

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the year 

 12,579,290 

 (9,777,392)

 19,000 

 2,820,898 

 27,859 

 2,848,757 

 -   

 2,848,757 

2017Figures (BWP) 2018Note

 14,544,437 

 (11,449,460)

 143,231 

 3,238,208 

 51,291 

 3,289,499 

 -   

 3,289,499 

7

8

9
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION as at 31 March 2018

ASSETS

Non Current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Current assets
Other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

FUNDS AND LIABILITIES
Funds and reserves
Accumulated funds

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Total liabilities
Total funds and liabilities

 1,125,840 
 139,379 

 1,265,219 

 64,948 
 10,484,208 
 10,549,156 
 11,814,375 

 6,880,355 
 6,880,355 

 4,934,020 
 4,934,020 

 11,814,375 

2017Figures (BWP) 2018Note

 

 1,190,626 
 99,036 

 1,289,662 

 66,421 
 13,970,166 
 14,036,587 
 15,326,249 

 10,169,854 
 10,169,854 

 5,156,395 
 5,156,395 

 15,326,249 

3
10

4
5

6
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUNDS for the year ended 31 March 2018

For the year ended 31 March 2017
Balance at 01 April 2016

Comprehensive income
Surplus for the year

Balance at 31 March 2017

For the year ended 31 March 2018
Balance at 01 April 2017

Comprehensive income
Surplus for the year

Balance at 31 March 2018

 
4,031,598 

 2,848,757 

 6,880,355 

 6,880,355 

 3,289,499 

 10,169,854 

TotalFigures (BWP)  Accumulated funds 

 
4,031,598 

 2,848,757 

 6,880,355 

 6,880,355 

 3,289,499 

 10,169,854 



41

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS for the year ended 31 March 2018

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations
Interest income
Net cash generated from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of intangible asset
Net cash used in investing activities

Net change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

 3,214,533 
 27,859 

 3,242,392 

 (762,381)
 (37,072)

 (799,453)

 2,442,939 
 8,041,269 

 10,484,208 

2017Figures (BWP) 2018Note

 3,880,201 
 51,291 

 3,931,492 

 (405,272)
 (40,262)

 (445,534)

 3,485,958 
 10,484,208 
 13,970,166 

11
9

3
10

5
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended 31 March 2018

General information
Engineers Registration Board (“Board”/”ERB”), engages 
in regulating the activities and conduct of registered 
engineers in accordance with the functions and powers 
conferred by the Engineers Registration (Amendment) 
Act, 2013. The Engineers Registration Board is an entity 
domiciled in Botswana. The Address of its registered 
office is Plot 145, Unit 3, Kgale Terrace, Gaborone, 
Botswana. 

The financial statements set out on pages 38 to 58 
have been approved by the Members of the Board of 
Engineers Registration Board on 7 December 2018.

1. BASIS OF PREPARATION

The annual financial statements have been prepared 
in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards, and in the manner required by the Engineers 
Registration (Amendment) Act, 2013. The annual financial 
statements have been prepared on the historical cost 
basis, except for the measurement of certain financial 
instruments at fair value, and incorporate the principal 
accounting policies set out below. They are presented 
in Botswana Pula.

These accounting policies are consistent with the previous 
period.

1.1 Significant judgments and sources of estimation 
uncertainty
In preparation of the annual financial statements, 
management is required to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the amounts represented in the 
financial statements and related disclosures. Use of 
available information and the application of judgment 

is inherent in the formation of estimates. Actual results 
in the future could differ from these estimates which 
may be material to the annual financial statements. 
Significant judgments include:
  
Loans and receivables
The Engineers Registration Board assesses its loans 
and receivables for impairment at the end of each 
reporting period. In determining whether an impairment 
loss should be recorded in profit or loss, the Engineers 
Registration Board makes judgments as to whether 
there is observable data indicating a measurable 
decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a 
financial asset.

Impairment testing
The recoverable amounts of individual assets have 
been determined based on the higher of value-in-use 
calculations and fair value less costs to sell. These 
calculations require the use of estimates and assumptions. 
It is reasonably possible that the assumption may 
change which may then impact our estimations and 
may then require a material adjustment to the carrying 
value of tangible assets.

The Engineers Registration Board reviews and 
tests the carrying value of assets when events or 
changes in circumstances suggest that the carrying 
amount may not be recoverable. Assets grouped at 
the lowest level for which identifiable cash flows are 
largely independent of cash flows of other assets and 
liabilities. 

If there are indications that impairment may have 
occurred, estimates are prepared of expected future cash 
flows for each group of assets They are significantly 

affected by a number of factors including production 
estimates, supply and demand, together with economic 
factors such as exchange rates, interest rates and 
inflation. 

Treatment of grants received from Government
Taking into account its nature and substance, the 
Board considers amounts that it receives from 
the Government to fall within the scope of IAS 20 
Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of 
Government Assistance. In reaching this conclusion, 
the Board considers the terms attached to each of the 
grants received and the current practice adopted by 
other parastatals in Botswana. Accordingly, the Board 
recognises the amounts received in accordance with 
the accounting policy as included in note 1.12.

Provisions 
Provisions are raised when management determined 
an estimate based on the information available. No 
provisions were raised at year end (2016: P Nil).

1.2 Property, plant and equipment
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is 
recognised as an asset when:

it is probable that future economic benefits associated 
with the item will flow to the Board; and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at 
cost.

Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or 
construct an item of property, plant and equipment and 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont.) for the year ended 31 March 2018

costs incurred subsequently to add to, replace part of, 
or service it. If a replacement cost is recognised in 
the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and 
equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part is 
derecognised. 

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the 
straight line basis over their expected useful lives to 
their estimated residual value.

The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment 
have been assessed as follows:

Item
Furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles
Office equipment
IT quipment 

Average useful life
10 Years
4 Years
7 Years
4 Years

The residual value, useful life and depreciation method 
of each asset are reviewed at the end of each reporting 
period. If the expectations differ from previous estimates, 
the change is accounted for as a change in accounting 
estimate. 

The depreciation charge for each period is recognised 
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income unless it 
is included in the carrying amount of another asset.
The gain or loss arising from de-recognition of an item 
of property, plant and equipment is included in profit 
or loss when the item is derecognised. The gain or 
loss arising from de-recognition of an item of property, 
plant and equipment is determined as the difference 
between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the 
carrying amount of the item.

1.3 Intangible assets

Computer Software
Costs associated with maintaining computer software 
are recognised as an expense as incurred. 
   
Costs that are directly attributable for the installation 
of identifiable computer software controlled by the 
Company, and that will probably generate economic 
benefits exceeding costs beyond one year, are 
recognised as intangible assets.

Computer software costs recognised as assets are 
amortised over their useful lives, which does not exceed 
four years and are tested annually for impairment.

1.4 Financial instruments

Classification
The Board classifies financial assets and financial 
liabilities into the following categories:
•   Loans and receivables
•   Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

Classification depends on the purpose for which the 
financial instruments were obtained / incurred and 
takes place at initial recognition. Classification is re-
assessed on an annual basis, except for derivatives 
and financial assets designated as at fair value through 
profit or loss, which shall not be classified out of the fair 
value through profit or loss category.

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial instruments are recognised initially when the 
Board becomes a party to the contractual provisions 
of the instruments.

The Board classifies financial instruments, or their 
component parts, on initial recognition as a financial 
asset, a financial liability or an equity instrument in 
accordance with the substance of the contractual 
arrangement. 

Financial instruments are measured initially at fair 
value, except for equity investments for which a fair 
value is not determinable, which are measured at 
cost and are classified as available-for-sale financial 
assets.

For financial instruments which are not at fair value 
through profit or loss, transaction costs are included in 
the initial measurement of the instrument.

Transaction costs on financial instruments at fair value 
through profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent measurement
Loans and receivables are subsequently measured 
at amortised cost, using the effective interest method, 
less accumulated impairment losses.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest 
method.  

Derecognition
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to 
receive cash flows from the investments have expired 
or have been transferred and the group has transferred 
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont.) for the year ended 31 March 2018

1.5 Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables are measured at initial 
recognition at fair value, and are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest 
rate method. Appropriate allowances for estimated 
irrecoverable amounts are recognised in profit or loss 
when there is objective evidence that the asset is 
impaired. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, 
probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or 
financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency 
in payments are considered indicators that the trade 
receivable is impaired. The allowance recognised 
is measured as the difference between the asset’s 
carrying amount and the present value of estimated 
future cash flows discounted at the effective interest 
rate computed at initial recognition.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through 
the use of an allowance account, and the amount of 
the loss is recognised in profit or loss within operating 
expenses. When a trade receivable is uncollectable, 
it is written off against the allowance account for 
trade receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts 
previously written off are credited against operating 
expenses in profit or loss.

Trade and other receivables are classified as loans 
and receivables.

1.6 Trade and other payables
Trade payables are initially measured at fair value, and 
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using 
the effective interest rate method.

1.7 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand 

and demand deposits, and other short-term highly 
liquid investments that are readily convertible to 
a known amount of cash and are subject to an 
insignificant risk of changes in value. These are initially 
and subsequently recorded at fair value.

1.8 Leases
A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers 
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to 
ownership. A lease is classified as an operating lease 
if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and 
rewards incidental to ownership.

Operating leases – lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an 
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 
The difference between the amounts recognised 
as an expense and the contractual payments are 
recognised as an operating lease liability. This asset 
is not discounted.

Any contingent rents are expensed in the period they 
are incurred.

1.9 Impairment of assets
The Board assesses at each end of the reporting 
period whether there is any indication that an asset 
may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the 
Board estimates the recoverable amount of the asset.

If there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, 
the recoverable amount is estimated for the individual 
asset. If it is not possible to estimate the recoverable 
amount of the individual asset, the recoverable amount 
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs 
is determined.

The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-
generating unit is the higher of its fair value less costs 
to sell and its value in use. 

If the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its 
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is 
reduced to its recoverable amount. That reduction is 
an impairment loss.

An impairment loss of assets carried at cost less any 
accumulated depreciation or amortisation is recognised 
immediately in profit or loss. Any impairment loss of a 
revalued asset is treated as a revaluation decrease.

The Board assesses at each reporting date whether 
there is any indication that an impairment loss 
recognised in prior periods for assets other than goodwill 
may no longer exist or may have decreased. If any 
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of 
those assets are estimated. 

The increased carrying amount of an asset attributable 
to a reversal of an impairment loss does not exceed 
the carrying amount that would have been determined 
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset 
in prior periods.

A reversal of an impairment loss of assets carried at 
cost less accumulated depreciation or amortisation is 
recognised immediately in profit or loss. Any reversal 
of an impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated as 
a revaluation increase.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont.) for the year ended 31 March 2018

1.10 Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits
The cost of short-term employee benefits, (those payable 
within 12 months after the service is rendered, such 
as paid extension leave and sick leave, bonuses, 
and non – monetary benefits such as medical care), 
are recognised in the period in which the service is 
rendered and are not discounted.

The expected cost of compensated absences is 
recognised as an expense as the employees render 
services that increase their entitlement or, in the case 
of non – accumulating absences, when the absence 
occurs. 

1.11 Provisions and contingencies
Provisions are recognised when:

the Board has a present obligation as a result of a 
past event;
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying 
economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation; and
a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.

the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
it is probable that the economic benefits associated 
with the transaction will flow to the entity; and
the stage of completion of the transaction at the end 
of the reporting period can be measured reliably; 
and
the costs incurred for the transaction and the costs 
to complete the transaction can be measured 
reliably.

The amount of a provision is the present value of the 
expenditure expected to be required to settle the 
obligation.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle 
a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another 
party, the reimbursement shall be recognised when, 
and only when, it is virtually certain that reimbursement 
will be received if the entity settles the obligation. The 
reimbursement shall be treated as a separate asset. 
The amount recognised for the reimbursement shall 
not exceed the amount of the provision.

Provisions are not recognised for future operating 
losses.

If an entity has a contract that is onerous, the present 
obligation under the contract shall be recognised and 
measured as a provision.

1.12 Government subvention and grants
Government grants are measured at the fair value of the 
consideration received or receivable and represents 
the amounts receivable from government in the 
furtherance of the Board’s objectives. 

Government grants are recognised as income over 
the periods necessary to match them with the related 
costs that they are intended to compensate. 

Government grants related to assets, including non- 
monetary grants at fair value, are presented in the 
statement of financial position by setting up the grant 
as deferred income or by deducting the grant in 
arriving at the carrying amount of the asset. 

1.13 Revenue
Revenue from subscriptions, members’ application 
fees, registration fees, practising certificate fees and 
membership fees are recognised when services are 
rendered.

When the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering 
of services can be estimated reliably, revenue 
associated with the transaction is recognised by 
reference to the stage of completion of the transaction 
at reporting date. The outcome of a transaction can 
be estimated reliably when all the following conditions 
are satisfied:

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration 
received or receivable and represents the amounts 
receivable for services provided in the normal course 
of business; The basis of revenue recogition is provided 
below:

Application fees- When the application form is submitted 
for assessment.
Registration fees- Upon completion of the registration 
process.
Membership fee and practising certificate fee- When 
membership is renewed and the practising certificate 
is issued.

Interest is recognised, in profit or loss, using the 
effective interest rate method. 

1.14 Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions
A foreign currency transaction is recorded, on initial 
recognition in Pula, by applying to the foreign currency 
amount the spot exchange rate between the functional 
currency and the foreign currency at the date of the 
transaction.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont.) for the year ended 31 March 2018

At the end of the reporting period:

foreign currency monetary items are translated using 
the closing rate;
non-monetary items that are measured in terms of 
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated 
using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction; 
and
non-monetary items that are measured at fair value 
in a foreign currency are translated using the 
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was 
determined.

IAS 7 ‘– Cash flow statements’ (Amendments)  
In January 2016, the International Accounting 
Standards Board (IASB) issued an amendment to 
IAS 7 introducing an additional disclosure that will 
enable users of financial statements to evaluate 
changes in liabilities arising from financing activities. The 
amendment responds to requests from investors 
for information that helps them better understand 
changes in an entity’s debt. The amendment will affect 
every entity preparing IFRS financial statements. 
(Effective 1 January 2017)

IAS 12, ‘– Income taxes’ (Amendments) The 
amendments were issued to clarify the requirements 
for recognising deferred tax assets on unrealised 
losses. The amendments clarify the accounting 
for deferred tax where an asset is measured at fair 
value and that fair value is below the asset’s tax 
base. They also clarify certain other aspects

IFRS 9, Financial Instruments (2009 & 2010) financial 
liabilities, derecognition of financial instruments, 
financial assets & general hedge accounting: The 
IASB has updated IFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’ 
to include guidance on financial liabilities and 
derecognition of financial instruments. The 
accounting and presentation for financial liabilities 
and for derecognising financial instruments has 
been relocated from IAS 39, ‘Financial instruments: 
Recognition and measurement’, without change, 

of accounting for deferred tax assets. (Effective 1 
January 2017)

IFRS 12,’Disclosure of interests in other entities’ 
regarding clarification of the scope of the standard. 
The amendment clarified that the disclosures 
requirement of IFRS 12 are applicable to interest 
in entities classified as held for sale except for 
summarised financial information (para B17 of IFRS 
12). Previously, it was unclear whether all other 
IFRS 12 requirements were applicable for these 
interests. (Effective 1 January 2017)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of 
monetary items or on translating monetary items at 
rates different from those at which they were translated 
on initial recognition during the period or in previous 
annual financial statements are recognised in profit or 
loss in the period in which they arise.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised 
to other comprehensive income and accumulated 
in equity, any exchange component of that gain or 
loss is recognised to other comprehensive income 
and accumulated in equity. When a gain or loss on a 
non-monetary item is recognised in profit or loss, any 
exchange component of that gain or loss is recognised 
in profit or loss.

Cash flows arising from transactions in a foreign 
currency are recorded in Pula by applying to the 
foreign currency amount the exchange rate between 
the Pula and the foreign currency at the date of the 
cash flow.

2. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND 
DISCLOSURE

(a) New and amended standards adopted by the Board
The following new standards, amendments and 
interpretations to existing standards are mandatory 
for the company’s accounting periods beginning on or 
after 1 April 2017. 

(b) New and amended standards applicable to the 
current period but not applicable to the Board.
Management assessed the relevance of the following 
new standards, amendments and interpretations with 
respect to the company’s operations and concluded 
that they are not relevant to the Board.

(c) Standards, amendments and interpretations to 
existing standards that are not yet effective and have 
not been early adopted by the Board
The following new standards, amendments and 
interpretations to existing standards are mandatory for 
the Board’s accounting periods beginning on or after 
1 April 2017. These have not been early adopted by 
the Board. 

New standards, amendments and interpretations which 
are relevant to the Board’s operations
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IFRS 9 (Amendment) -’Financial instruments’,- on 
general hedge accounting. The IASB has amended 
IFRS 9 to align hedge accounting more closely 

except for financial liabilities that are designated 
at fair value through profit or loss. (Effective from 1 
January 2018)

IFRS 9 -’Financial instruments (Amendment)‘, 
prepayment features with negative compensation 
and modification of financial liabilities. The narrow-
scope amendment covers two issues: The 
amendments allow companies to measure particular 
prepayable financial assets with so-called negative 
compensation at amortised cost or at fair value 
through other comprehensive income if a specified 
condition is met—instead of at fair value through 
profit or loss. It is likely to have the biggest impact 
on banks and other financial services entities. 
How to account for the modification of a financial 
liability. The amendment confirms that most such 
modifications will result in immediate recognition 
of a gain or loss. This is a change from common 
practice under IAS 39 today and will affect all kinds 
of entities that have renegotiated borrowings.

Management is currently assessing the impact of the 
application of these new standards, amendments and 
interpretations on the Board’s financial statements 
in the period of initial application. At this time, the 
adoption of these standards and interpretations is 
only expected to have an impact on the classification 
and disclosure of items in the company’s financial 
statements.

New standards, amendments and interpretations which 
are not relevant to the Board’s operations

with an entity’s risk management. The revised 
standard also establishes a more principles-based 
approach to hedge accounting and addresses 
inconsistencies and weaknesses in the current 
model in IAS 39. (Effective from 1 January 2018)

IFRS 10 (amendments), ‘Consolidated financial 
statements’ and IAS 28,’Investments in associates 
and joint ventures’ on applying the consolidation 
exemption. The amendments clarify the application 
of the consolidation exception for investment entities 
and their subsidiaries. (Effective date postponed, it 
was initially effective for annual periods beginning 
on or after – 1 January 2016)

IFRS 15, ‘– Revenue from contracts with customers’ 
It is a single, comprehensive revenue recognition 
model for all contracts with customers to achieve 
greater consistency in the recognition and 
presentation of revenue. Revenue is recognised 
based on the satisfaction of performance 
obligations, which occurs when control of good or 
service transfers to a customer. (Effective 1 January 
2018)

IFRS 15 (Amendment) – Revenue from contracts 
with customers. The IASB has amended IFRS 15 
to clarify the guidance, but there were no major 
changes to the standard itself. The amendments 
comprise clarifications of the guidance on 
identifying performance obligations, accounting for 
licenses of intellectual property and the principal 
versus agent assessment (gross versus net 
revenue presentation).  (Effective 1 January 2018)

IFRS 16 – Leases - This standard replaces the current 
guidance in IAS 17 and is a far reaching change 
in accounting by lessees in particular. IFRS 16 

now requires lessees to recognise a lease liability 
reflecting future lease payments and a ‘right-of-use 
asset’ for virtually all lease contracts. (Effective 1 
January 2019)

IFRS 17, ‘Insurance contracts’ - The IASB issued 
IFRS 17, ‘Insurance contracts’, and thereby started 
a new epoch of accounting for insurers. Whereas 
the current standard, IFRS 4, allows insurers to 
use their local GAAP, IFRS 17 defines clear and 
consistent rules that will significantly increase the 
comparability of financial statements. For insurers, 
the transition to IFRS 17 will have an impact on 
financial statements and on key performance 
indicators. (Effective 1 January 2021)

IAS 40, ‘Investment property’ (Amendment)- Transfers 
of investment property- These amendments clarify 
that to transfer to, or from, investment properties 
there must be a change in use. To conclude if a 
property has changed use there should be an 
assessment of whether the property meets the 
definition. This change must be supported by 
evidence. (Effective 1 January 2018)

IFRS 2 – ‘Share-based payments’ (Amendments) - 
Clarifying how to account for certain types of share-
based payment transactions. This amendment 
clarifies the measurement basis for cash-settled, 
share-based payments and the accounting for 
modifications that change an award from cash-
settled to equity-settled. (Effective 1 January 2018)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont.) for the year ended 31 March 2018

IFRS 4, ‘Insurance contracts’ (Amendment) - Regarding 
the implementation of IFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’. 
These amendments introduce two approaches: 
an overlay approach and a deferral approach. 
(Effective 1 January 2018)

IFRS 10, ‘Consolidated financial statements’ and 
IAS 28,’Investments in associates and joint ventures’ 
on sale or contribution of assets (Amendment): If 
the non-monetary assets sold or contributed to an 
associate or joint venture constitute a ‘business’, 
then the full gain or loss will be recognised by the 
investor. A partial gain or loss is recognised when 
a transaction involves assets that do not constitute 
a business, even if these assets are housed in a 
subsidiary. (effective date postponed, was initially 
from 1 January 2016)

IFRS 1,’ First-time adoption of IFRS’, regarding the 
deletion of short-term exemptions for first-time adopters 
regarding IFRS 7, IAS 19, and IFRS 10. (Effective 1 
January 2018)

IAS 28,’Investments in associates and joint ventures’ 
regarding measuring an associate or joint venture at 
fair value. IAS 28 allows venture capital organisations, 
mutual funds, unit trusts and similar entities to elect 
measuring their investments in associates or joint 
ventures at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL 
(Effective 1 January 2018)

IFRIC 22, ‘Foreign currency transactions and advance 
consideration. This IFRIC addresses foreign currency 
transactions or parts of transactions where there is 
consideration that is denominated or priced in a 
foreign currency. (Effective 1 January 2018)

IFRIC 23, ‘Uncertainty over income tax treatments’- 
IFRIC 23 provides a framework to consider, recognise 
and measure the accounting impact of tax uncertainties. 
The Interpretation provides specific guidance in 
several areas where previously IAS 12 was silent. 
(Effective 1 January 2019)

IAS 28, ‘Investments in associates and joint ventures’ 
(Amendment) this amendment clarifies that companies 
account for long-term interests in an associate or 
joint venture, to which the equity method is applied, 
using IFRS 9 (Effective 1 January 2019)

IFRS 3, ‘Business combinations’ (amendments), this 
amendment clarifies that a company remeasure its 
previously held interest in a joint operation when it 
obtains control of the business (Effective 1 January 
2019)

IFRS 11, ‘Joint arrangements’ (amendments), this 
amendment states that a company does not remeasure 
its previously held interest in a joint operation when 
it obtains joint control of the business (Effective 1 
January 2019)

IAS 12, ‘Income taxes’ (amendment), the amendment 
clarified that the income taxes consequences of 
dividends on financial instruments classified as 
equity should be recognized according to where 
the past transactions or events that generated 
distributable profits were recognized (Effective 1 
January 2019)

IAS 23, ‘Borrowing costs’ (amendment), the amendment 
states that a company treats as part of general 
borrowings any borrowings originally made to develop 
an asset when the asset is ready for its intended 
use or sale (Effective 1 January 2019)
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3 Property, plant and equipment 
  
 Year ended 31 March 2018 
 Opening net book amount  
 Additions 
 Depreciation charge 
 Closing net book amount 
  
 At 31 March 2018 
 Cost 
 Accumulated depreciation 
 Net book amount 
  
 Year ended 31 March 2017 
 Opening net book amount  
 Additions 
 Depreciation charge 
 Closing net book amount 
  
 At 31 March 2017 
 Cost 
 Accumulated depreciation 
 Net book amount 

 At 31 March 2016 
 Cost 
 Accumulated depreciation 
 Net book amount 

1,125,840 
 405,272 

 (340,486)
 1,190,626 

 2,199,458 
 (1,008,832)

 1,190,626 

 588,097 
 762,381 

 (224,638)
 1,125,840 

 1,794,186 
 (668,346)
 1,125,840 

 1,031,805 
 (443,708)

 588,097

TotalFigures (BWP) Motor 
vehicles

Furniture 
and fixtures

Computer 
equipment

Office
equipment

316,016 
 -   

 (92,946)
 223,070 

 500,131 
 (277,061)

 223,070 

 -   
 371,785 
 (55,769)
 316,016 

 500,131 
 (184,115)

 316,016

 128,346 
 (128,346)

 -  

510,115 
 -   

 (72,627)
 437,488 

 726,270 
 (288,782)

 437,488 

 343,536 
 230,518 
 (63,939)
 510,115 

 726,270 
 (216,155)

 510,115
 

495,752 
 (152,216)

 343,536

159,178 
 404,678 

 (146,945)
 416,911 

 786,456 
 (369,545)

 416,911 

 164,386 
 77,603 

 (82,811)
 159,178 

 381,778 
 (222,600)

 159,178 
 

304,175 
 (139,789)

 164,386

140,531 
 594 

 (27,968)
 113,157 

 186,601 
 (73,444)
 113,157 

 80,175 
 82,475 

 (22,119)
 140,531 

 186,007 
 (45,476)
 140,531

 

103,532 
 (23,357)

 80,175
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont.) for the year ended 31 March 2018

4 Other receivables
 
 Staff loans 
 Prepayments
 Deposits and other receivable

5 Cash and cash equivalents
 
 Cash on hand 
 Bank balances

 
 Cash on hand 
 Bank balances

 

55,397 
 4,987 
 4,564 

 64,948 

5,000 
10,479,208 
10,484,208 

5,000 
10,479,208 
10,484,208 

2017Figures (BWP) 2018

 

50,149 
 4,987 

 11,285 
 66,421 

14,533 
13,955,633 
13,970,166 

14,533 
13,955,633 
13,970,166 

The members od the board consider the carrying amount of other receivables to approximate their fair value.     
     
As of 31 March 2018, no trade receivables balances were  (2017: P nil) fully performing.     
As of 31 March 2018, no trade receivables balances were (2017 : P nil) past due but not impaired.      
As of 31 March 2018, no trade receivables balances were (2017 : P nil) past due and impaired.      
     
There were no trade receivable balances as at 31 March 2018.     
     
The carrying amount of trade and other receivables are denominated in Botswana Pula.     

Cash and cash equivalents balances are denominated in Botswana Pula     
     
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, the year-end cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:
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6 Trade and other payables
 
 Trade payables
 Income received in advance
 Accrued leave pay
 Accrued gratuity
 Other accruals
 Deposits - Prospective members
 Advance - Membership fee

7 Revenue
 
 Government grant
 Registration fees
 Application fees
 Membership and practicing certificate fees
 Duplicate certificate fee
 Workshops income

 

37,462 
 2,666,168 

 162,507 
 519,223 
 89,396 

 1,454,264 
 5,000 

 4,934,020 

 

6,080,070 
 1,099,793 
 2,538,469 
 2,740,495 

 5,500 
 114,963 

 12,579,290 

2017Figures (BWP) 2018

 

15,179 
 1,917,398 

 242,181 
 695,540 
 311,102 

 1,890,827 
 84,168 

 5,156,395 

 

6,779,520 
 1,124,749 
 2,068,768 
 4,525,372 

 3,500 
 42,528 

 14,544,437 

The members of the board consider the carrying value of trade and other payables to approximate their fair value.     
 
The carrying amounts of trade and other payables are denominated in Botswana Pula.     
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont.) for the year ended 31 March 2018

8 Operating surplus 

 Operating surplus for the year is stated after accounting for the following:
 Auditors’ remuneration 
 Charge for the year 
 Under provision for previous year 
  
  
 Depreciation and amortisation 
 Consulting Fees 
 Members Remuneration 
 Salaries and Wages 
 Rent 
 Committee sitting allowances 

9 Finance income
 
 Interest income on short-term bank deposits

10 Intangible assets

 Computer software
 
 Net book amount at beginning of year 
 Addition
 Amortisation
 Net book amount at end of year
 
 Cost
 Accumulated amortisation
 Net book amount

 

70,000 
 74,266 

 144,266 

 291,801 
 642,214 
 185,944 

 4,197,145 
 505,016 
 838,093 

27,859

 

169,470 
 37,072 

 (67,163)
 139,379 

 292,224 
 (152,845)

 139,379 

2017Figures (BWP) 2018

 165,000 
 99,600 

 264,600 

 421,090 
 159,962 

 7,162 
 5,720,508 

 583,013 
 808,176

51,291 

 139,379 
 40,262 

 (80,605)
 99,036 

 332,486 
 (233,450)

 99,036 



12 Related parties
   
 The Board maintains a relationship with the Government of Botswana which is the sole shareholder. The Government of Botswana provides significant income  
 to the Board through operational subventions. The Government has statutory representation on the members of board of the Board . Transactions directly with  
 the Government of Botswana  are treated as related party transactions.   
        
 a) Ministry of Infrastructure and Housing Development  (Ministry) - The Board is a parastatal under the Ministry.  

 Government grant (note 7)
 
 b) Key management compensation

 Key management consist of Chairman of the board , Deputy chairman of the board and other members of the board. Board has paid compensation to key  
 management for the services as shown below:
 
 Members’ remuneration 
 Committee sitting allowances 
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11  Cash generated from operations 
 
 Operating surplus
 Adjustments for:
 -Depreciation 
 -Amortisation
 
 Changes in working capital:
 -Trade and other receivables
 -Trade and other payables

 2,820,898 

 224,638 
 67,163 

 (33,986)
 135,820 

 3,214,533 

 185,944 
 145,023 
 330,967 

 6,080,070 

2017Figures (BWP) 2018Note

 
3,238,208 

 340,486 
 80,605 

 (1,473)
 222,375 

 3,880,201 

 7,162 
 197,205 
 204,367 

 6,779,520 

3
10
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont.) for the year ended 31 March 2018

 Between one 
and two years

 -   
 -   

 Between one 
and two years

 -   
 -   

2017Figures (BWP) 2018

Less than 
one year

 5,156,395 
 5,156,395 

Less than 
one year

 4,934,020 
 4,934,020 

13 Risk management   
    
 Capital risk management   
 The Board’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Board’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for Board and  
 benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. 

 Financial risk management    
 The board’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest rate risk, cash flow interest rate risk and price  
 risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.    
    
 Liquidity risk    
 The Board’s risk to liquidity is a result of the funds available to cover future commitments. The Board manages liquidity risks through an ongoing review of future  
 commitments and credit facilities.    
    
 The table below analyses the Board’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the statement of financial position  
 to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their  
 carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.

At 31 March 2018

Trade and other payables (excluding statutory liabilities)

At 31 March 2017

Trade and other payables (excluding statutory liabilities)

Interest rate risk  
As the Board has no significant interest - bearing assets, the Board’s income and operating cash flows are substantially independent of changes in market 
interest rates.



15 Financial liabilities by category 

 The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the line items below:

 Financial liabilities at amortised cost
 Assets as per the balance sheet

 Trade and other payables (Note 6) 
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13 Risk management (continued)  
    
 Credit risk  
  
 Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents and trade debtors. The Board only deposits cash with major banks with high quality credit standing
 and limits exposure to any one counter-party. Financial assets exposed to credit risk at year end were as follows:

 64,948 
 10,479,208 
 10,544,156 

 59,961 
 10,484,208 
 10,544,169 

 4,934,020 
 4,934,020 

 66,421 
 13,955,633 
 14,022,054 

 61,434 
 13,970,166 
 14,031,600 

 5,156,395 
 5,156,395 

Trade and other receivables 
Bank

Foreign exchange risk

The Board does not operate internationally and is not exposed to foreign exchange risk.

14 Financial assets by category 

 The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the line items below:
 
 Loans and receivables
 Assets as per the balance sheet
 Trade and other receivables (excluding prepayments and statutory receivable) 
 (Note 4)
 Cash and cash equivalents (Note 5)
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16 Credit quality of financial assets  

 The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to historical information about counterparty default  
 rates:  
   
 There were no trade receivable as at 31 March 2018 or 2017.  

 64,948 

 5,836,126 
 4,643,082 

 10,479,208 

 66,421 

 9,032,028 
 4,923,605 

 13,955,633 

Other receivables (Note 4)
Not rated

Cash at bank and short-term bank deposits (Note 5)
(excluding cash in hand) 

Stanbic Bank Botswana Limited
Barclays Bank of Botswana Limited

Key:   
Group 1 = new customers  (less than 6 months)   
Group 2 = existing customers  (more than 6 months) with no defaults in the past   
Group 3 = existing customers (more than 6 months) with some defaults in the past. All defaults were fully recovered.   
   
The Board only deposits cash with major banks with high quality credit standing and limits exposure to any one counter-party. The company has deposits with  
Stanbic Bank Botswana Limited and Barclays Bank of Botswana Limited. There are no credit ratings’ available in Botswana.    
   
Stanbic Bank Botswana Limited is a long established bank in Botswana and a subsidiary of Standard Bank in South Africa. Standard Bank South Africa is listed 
on the Johannesburg Stock Exchange and has a long term credit rating of BBB (Fitch rating).   
      
Barclays Bank of Botswana Limited is listed on the Botswana Stock Exchange and is a subsidiary of Barclays plc, which is listed on the London Stock Exchange 
and has a credit rating AAA+ (Fitch rating). 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont.) for the year ended 31 March 2018
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17 Fair value estimation of financial instruments   
   
 Effective 1 January 2013, the Board adopted the amendment to IFRS 7 for financial instruments that are measured in the statement of financial position at fair value. 
 This requires disclosure of fair value measurements by level of the following fair value measurement hierarchy: 

      Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1). 
       Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived 
      from prices) (level 2).  
      Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3). 
 The Board does not have any financial instrument measured at fair value at the end of the reporting period. 

18 Expenses by nature 
  
 Advertising and promotions 
 Committee sitting allowances 
 Computer expenses 
 Conference and seminars 
 Consulting fees 
 Depreciation and amortisation 
 Members remuneration 
 Employee costs 
 Printing and stationery 
 Recruitment costs 
 Registrants background checks 
 Rent 
 Travelling expenses 
 Other expenses   
   
   
   

 209,113 
 838,093 
 245,409 
 435,505 
 642,214 
 291,801 
 185,944 

 4,197,145 
 315,206 

 -   
 364,840 
 505,016 
 361,766 

 1,185,340 
 9,777,392 

 454,367 
 808,176 
 513,068 
 230,622 
 159,962 
 421,091 

 7,162 
 5,720,508 

 331,776 
 14,896 

 324,309 
 583,013 
 326,437 

 1,554,073 
 11,449,460 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont.) for the year ended 31 March 2018

19 Income Tax    
    
 The Board was established through an Act of Parliament and exempt from paying income tax as per the Second Schedule Part I Para (XIV) of the Income Tax 
 Act.
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20 Value Added Tax
   
 The Board was established through an Act of Parliament and the activities of the Board are not considered as taxable activities. Therefore Board is not liable to 
 register for Value Added Tax.   
        
21 Capital commitments   
    
 There were no capital commitments at year end.   
    
22 Operating lease commitments- where the Board is the lessee   
    
 There are no material operating lease commitments arising out of  non - cancellable operating lease agreements outstanding at the end of reporting date. The 
 leases are negotiated on an annual basis.   
    
23 Contingencies
   
 An employee of the Board has made a claim for the payment of allowances paid to the position he was acting in addition to the acting allowances already paid; 
 and the matter is still to be heard at the industrial court. The Board is of the view that it will successfully defeat this claim.   
    
24 Post balance sheet date events   
    
 There were no events that occurred after the reporting date which require adjustments to or disclosure in these annual financial statements other than the matter 
 disclosed under contingencies.
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DETAILED INCOME STATEMENT for the year ended 31 March 2018                                                                           Annexure I

Revenue

Operating expenses
Accounting fees
Advertising and promotions
Auditors remuneration
Bank charges
Cleaning
Committee sitting allowances
Computer expenses
Conference and seminars
Consulting fees
Depreciation and amortisation
Members remuneration
Discount allowed
Salaries and wages
Insurance
Secretarial fees
Motor vehicle expenses
Office expenses
Postage
Printing and stationery
Recruitment costs
Registrants background checks
Rent
Repairs and maintenance
Secretarial fees
Security
Staff welfare
Subscriptions
Telephone and fax
Training expenses
Travelling expenses

Other operating income
Finance income
Profit  from operations

 12,579,290 

 -   
 209,113 
 144,266 
 127,360 

 3,266 
 838,093 
 245,409 
 435,505 
 642,214 
 291,801 
 185,944 

 -   
 4,197,145 

 84,976 
 16,128 
 23,706 

 140,455 
 2,450 

 315,206 
 -   

 364,840 
 505,016 

 1,300 
 72,800 
 25,889 
 83,142 
 10,893 

 163,466 
 285,243 
 361,766 

 (9,777,392)

 19,000 
 27,859 

 2,848,757 

2017Figures (BWP) 2018

 14,544,437 

 -   
 454,367 
 264,600 
 136,801 
 79,295 

 808,176 
 513,068 
 230,622 
 159,962 
 421,091 

 7,162 
 -   

 5,720,508 
 50,448 
 89,600 
 31,135 

 111,175 
 19,333 

 331,776 
 14,896 

 324,309 
 583,013 
 17,752 

 -   
 17,742 

 193,895 
 30,247 

 153,304 
 297,630 
 326,437 

 (11,449,460)

 143,231 
 51,291 

 3,289,499 

The detailed income statement do not form part of the audited financial statements covered by the audit opinion on pages 34 to 37.
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